
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 6, 2011 

FROM: Department of Public Works 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT AWARD TO HDR ENGINEERING, INC. FOR 
CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A ZERO WASTE 
STRATEGIC PLAN FOR A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $83,510 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Find that the project is exempt from California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") 
pursuant to the State CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 (b) 3 (General Rule); and 

2. Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with HDR Engineering Inc., a 
consultant firm, to assist with the development of a Zero Waste Strategic Plan, in an 
amount not to exceed $83,510. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2006 the Pasadena City Council approved a declaration of support of the Urban 
Environmental Accords (UEA). The UEA contains 21 action items that lay the 
groundwork for addressing universal urban environmental issues on energy, waste 
reduction, urban design, urban nature, transportation, environmental health, and water. 
Achieving zero waste to landfills and incinerators by 2040 is UEA Action Number 4. 

The Zero Waste Strategic Plan (ZW Plan) was discussed with the Municipal Service 
Committee in December 2010 and the Environmental Advisory Commission in February 
2011. 

On February 2, 2011, the Street Maintenance and Integrated Waste Management 
Division of the Department of Public Works released a Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
the services of a consultant to assist staff with the development of a ZW Plan. The 
purpose of this project is to proactively examine a variety of long term solid waste 
management options that may be available to the City over the next several years, and 
evaluate each option to determine those that are ·practical and will meet the City's goal 
of achieving zero waste by 2040. 

The ZW Plan will also look at current and future infrastructure options, contractual 
obligations, franchise agreements, and waste flow control among other issues. 
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Five firms responded and were evaluated based on criteria set forth in the RFP. The 
evaluation committee consisted of five staff members (three from Public Works, one 
from Planning, and one from Economic Development). Based on the evaluation 
summarized in Attachment A, HDR Engineering Inc., was determined to be the best 
qualified to perform the needed services. The entire project including the public 
participation process, waste characterization, development/evaluation of diversion 
programs and final report will take approximately one year to complete. 

COUNCIL POLICY CONSIDERATION: 

The proposed contract supports the City Council's strategic plan goal to increase 
conservation and sustainability. It further supports the United Nations Urban 
Environmental Accords, Action Number 4 -Achieving Zero Waste to landfills and 
incinerators by 2040. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be 
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Sufficient funds have been budgeted for this purpose in the Department of Public Works 
Fiscal Year 2011 Waste Reduction/Recycling budget (account 8114-406-764200). 

Prepared by: 

c~~~(~ 
Gabriel Silva 
Management Analyst IV 

City Manager 

Attachment A - Proposer Ran kings 
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